Arizona State Board of Pharmacy
1700 W. Washington, Suite 250
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Telephone (602) 771-2727 Fax (602) 771-2749

THE ARIZONA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY
HELD A REGULAR MEETING NOVEMBER 14 AND NOVEMBER 15, 2007
AT THE ARIZONA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY OFFICE
PHOENIX, AZ

MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING
AGENDA ITEM 1 — Call to Order — November 14, 2007

President Van Hassel convened the meeting at 9:08 A.M. and welcomed the audience to
the meeting.

The following Board Members were present: President Tom Van Hassel, Vice President
Zina Berry, Chuck Dutcher, Steven Haiber, Louanne Honeyestewa, Dennis McAllister,
Paul Sypherd, and Ridge Smidt. The following staff members were present: Compliance
Officers Rich Cieslinski, Chuck Cordell, Larry Dick, Ed Hunter, Sandra Sutcliffe, and
Dean Wright, Drug Inspector Heather Lathim, Deputy Director Cheryl Frush, Executive
Director Hal Wand, and Assistant Attorney General Elizabeth Campbell.

Ms. Frush explained that law continuing education would be offered for attendance at the
meeting.

AGENDA ITEM 2 — Declaration of Conflicts of Interest

Due to a conflict of interest, Mr. Haiber recused himself from participating in the review,
discussion, and proposed action concerning Agenda Item 11, Schedule F, Complaint
#3395, Complaint #3398, Complaint #3406, and Complaint #3417.

Due to a conflict of interest, Dr. Berry recused herself from participating in the review,
discussion, and proposed action concerning Agenda Item 11, Schedule F, Complaint
#3405, and Complaint #3436.

Due to a conflict of interest, Dr. Smidt recused himself from participating in the review,
discussion, and proposed action concerning Agenda Item 7, Schedule C, Item #7.

AGENDA ITEM 3 - Approval of Minutes
Following a review of the minutes and an opportunity for questions and on motion by

Mr. Dutcher and Dr. Berry, the minutes of the Regular Meeting held on September 11
and 12, 2007 were unanimously approved by the Board Members.



AGENDA ITEM 4 — Consideration of Proposed Consent Agreement for Lisa
Hunter — Case 08-0003-PHR

President VVan Hassel stated that Ms. Hunter is requesting that the Board consider a
proposed consent order to resolve her case.

Ms. Hunter was present. Brent Peugnet, Attorney for Ms. Hunter was present.

Elizabeth Campbell, Assistant Attorney General for the State was present. Laurie

Woodall was present from the Solicitor General’s Office to serve as Counsel for the
Board.

Mr. Van Hassel opened the discussion by asking Ms. Hunter if she would like to address
the Board.

Mr. Peugnet stated that he would advocate that the Board accept the proposed Consent
Agreement. Mr. Peugnet stated that Ms. Hunter has agreed to surrender her license.

Ms. Hunter read a brief statement concerning her case. Ms. Hunter stated that she has not
worked as a pharmacist since the incident. Ms. Hunter stated that she suffers from a
physical disability. Ms. Hunter stated that in the next year she plans to work on methods
to improve her disability.

Mr. Van Hassel asked Ms. Campbell if she has any recommendations for the Board.

Ms. Campbell stated that she would recommend that the Board accept the Consent
Agreement for the Surrender of Ms. Hunter’s Pharmacist license.

Mr. McAllister stated that he felt that the consent was a reasonable resolution to remove a
practitioner that is practicing at an unsafe level. Mr. McAllister stated that he felt that a
competency assessment must be completed prior to Ms. Hunter’s return to practice. Mr.
McAllister stated that he felt that Ms. Hunter should pass the NAPLEX and MPJE exams
prior to re-entry to practice.

Mr. Dutcher stated that the details of re-entry could be debated today or a year from now
when Ms. Hunter requests to return to practice.

Dr. Smidt stated that he felt that the reinstatement terms could be discussed in a year
when Ms. Hunter returns to practice.

Dr. Berry asked if the consent order presented to the Board could be amended.
Mr. McAllister stated that this is different than the majority of cases which involve drug
diversion. Mr. McAllister stated that it is a competency issue and could be addressed in a

year.

Ms. Campbell stated that the consent could be amended and the Board could instruct her
to amend the agreement per their instructions.



Mr. Peugnet stated that his client would agree to the terms discussed. Mr. Peugnet asked
if the director could sign the consent agreement once it is modified in order not to delay
the process any longer.

Ms. Woodall asked Ms. Campbell if the consent order would be modified and presented
to the executive director for signing.

Ms. Campbell stated that she would amend the consent agreement and add the language
that any reinstatement or re-licensure would be conditioned upon Ms. Hunter’s successful
completion of the NAPLEX and MPJE exam.

Mr. Haiber asked if the Board accepted this consent agreement would it block the Board
from adding any other requirements upon Ms. Hunter’s request to have her license
reinstated.

Ms. Campbell replied no.

Mr. Peugnet stated that his client would agree to the modification of the consent
agreement.

On motion by Dr. Berry and Mr. Dutcher, the Board unanimously agreed to accept the
consent agreement for Lisa Hunter with the amended language, which would require Ms.
Hunter to successfully complete the NAPLEX and MPJE exam prior to reinstatement or
re-licensure. Once modified the consent agreement would be given to the Executive
Director to sign. A Roll Call vote was taken. (Mr. McAllister — aye, Ms. Honeyestewa —
aye, Dr. Smidt — aye, Mr. Dutcher —aye, Mr. Haiber — aye, Dr. Sypherd — aye, Dr. Berry —
aye, and Mr. Van Hassel — aye.)

AGENDA ITEM 5 - Hearings

The Hearing for Lisa Hunter was cancelled because the Board accepted a Consent
Agreement for Lisa Hunter for the voluntary surrender of her pharmacist license.
AGENDA ITEM 6 — Permits and Licenses

President VVan Hassel stated that all permits were in order for resident pharmacies and
representatives were present to answer questions from Board members.

Medco Health Solutions of Scottsdale

Mary Ryan, Vice President of Corporate Pharmacy Regulatory Affairs for Medco and
Roger Krohm, Pharmacist In Charge were present to answer Board Member’s questions.

President VVan Hassel opened the discussion by asking the representatives to discuss their
business.

Ms. Ryan stated that they would be opening a limited service pharmacy. Ms. Ryan stated
that this would not be a dispensing pharmacy.



Ms. Ryan stated that this would be an office setting and the pharmacists employed would
be working from their homes.

Mr. Dutcher asked Ms. Ryan to describe what kind of work the pharmacist would be
doing at their homes. Ms. Ryan stated that the pharmacists would be verifying
prescriptions, counseling patients, and other non-dispensing functions.

Ms. Ryan stated that they anticipate that 20 pharmacists would eventually be employed at
this site, but would be working from their homes. Ms. Ryan stated that initially they plan
to hire 10 pharmacists.

Mr. Wand asked Ms. Ryan if they are requesting an exception for equipment normally
required for limited service dispensing pharmacies. Ms. Ryan replied yes.

On motion by Dr. Berry and Dr. Smidt, the Board unanimously approved the
application for Medco Health Solutions of Scottsdale. The Board also approved their
request for an exception for equipment normally required for a limited service dispensing
pharmacy.

Humana Right Source Pharmacy
Steven Lerch, Pharmacist In Charge, was present to answer Board Member’s questions.

President Van Hassel opened the discussion by asking Mr. Lerch to discuss the
company’s new proposed pharmacy.

Mr. Lerch stated that the company has applied for a limited service pharmacy permit to
open a closed door shared service pharmacy.

Mr. Lerch stated that the pharmacy would employ about 20 pharmacists. The
pharmacists would be responsible for performing prescription verifications and patient
counseling. Mr. Lerch stated that no dispensing would be done at this site.

Dr. Berry asked if only pharmacists would be employed at this site. Mr. Lerch stated that
only pharmacists would be employed at this site.

Mr. Wand asked Mr. Lerch if they are requesting an exception for equipment normally
required for limited service dispensing pharmacies. Mr. Lerch replied yes.

On motion by Mr. Haiber and Dr. Sypherd, the Board unanimously approved the
application for Humana Right Source Pharmacy . The Board also approved their request
for an exception for equipment normally required for a limited service dispensing
pharmacy.

At the conclusion of questions from the Board Members and on motion by Mr. Dutcher
and Mr. Haiber, the Board unanimously approved the resident permits listed below.
The application for MyVetSentMe was tabled until the Board Member’s meet with the
owners. All approvals are subject to final inspection by a Board Compliance Officer
where appropriate.



RESIDENT (In Arizona)

Pharmacy Location Owner

Summit Healthcare Association 2200 E. Show Low Lake Rd., Show Low, AZ 85901 | Summit Healthcare Association

Walgreens Pharmacy #09472 2707 W. Carefree Hwy., Phoenix, AZ 85085 Walgreen Arizona Drug Co.

MedOne Healthcare, LLC 444 W, 21% St., Suite 103, Tempe, AZ 85282 (O) MedOne Healthcare, LLC

Tempe St. Luke’s Hospital 1500 S. Mill Ave., Tempe, AZ 85281 (O) St. Luke’s Medical Center LP.

Safeway Pharmacy #2799 2845 N. Vistancia Blvd., Peoria, AZ 85383 Safeway Inc.

UMC at Orange Grove 1891 W. Orange Grove, Tucson, AZ 85704 (O) University Medical Center

CVS/Pharmacy #7862 17050 N. Thompson Peak Pkwy., Scottsdale, AZ German Dobson CVS LLC
85255

Walgreens Pharmacy #10260 3230 E. Chandler Heights, Gilbert, AZ 85297 Walgreen Arizona Drug Co.

Medco Health Solutions of Scottsdale 14811 N. Kierland Blvd., Ste 600, Rm 109, Medco at Home, LLC
Scottsdale, AZ 85254

Wal-Mart Neighborhood Market 5500 E. 22" St., Tucson, AZ 85711 Wal-Mart Stores

Pharmacy #4603

CVS/Pharmacy #3383 7550 S. 19" Ave., Phoenix, AZ 85041 Arizona CVS Stores, LLC

Critical Care Systems 4645 Ash Avenue, Ste I-6, Tempe, AZ 85282 (O) Medco Health Solutions

Sam’s Club Pharmacy 10-4829 2621 S. Market St., Gilbert, AZ 85295 Sams’ West Inc.

Wal-Mart Neighborhood Market 6550 W. Happy Valley Rd., Phoenix, AZ 85085 Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.

Pharmacy #10-4233

Wal-Mart Neighborhood Market 15431 W. Greenway Rd. , Surprise, AZ 85374 Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.

Pharmacy #10-4218

Wal-Mart Supercenter Pharmacy #10- 4747 E. Cactus Rd., Phoenix, AZ 85032 Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.

4232

Humana RightSource Pharmacy 7333 S. Hardy Rd., Tempe, AZ 85283 Humana RightSource, Inc.

(O) = Ownership Change

MyVetSentMe

Owner John Fain, Owner Michael Shumsky, and Pharmacist In Charge Lou Goldstein
were present to answer Board Member’s questions.

President Van Hassel opened the discussion by asking the representatives to discuss their
business.

Mr. Fain stated that they would be opening a pharmacy that would serve veterinary
patients. Mr. Fain stated that they would be promoting their pharmacy to veterinarians.
Mr. Fain stated that they would only fill valid prescriptions. Mr. Fain indicated that they
would not be compounding any medications.

Mr. Dutcher asked if the owners were pharmacists. Mr. Fain replied that they were not
pharmacists but were aware of the rules and know that only the pharmacist can have
access to the pharmacy.

Mr. Dutcher asked Mr. Fain if they were promoting their business to the pet owners or
the veterinarians. Mr. Fain stated that they would be promoting their business to the
veterinarians as an alternative pharmacy where their patients could have their
prescriptions filled.

Mr. Wand stated that the veterinarians can give patients addresses where prescriptions
could be filled and the patient selects where to have their pet’s prescriptions filled.

Mr. Van Hassel asked if the owners operate a wholesale business. Mr. Fain stated that
they own Associated Medical that wholesales veterinary supplies to veterinarians.




Mr. Van Hassel asked if any veterinary clinics are located in the same building. Mr.

Shumsky replied no.

Dr. Smidt asked the representatives if they understand the rules and what constitutes a
valid prescription. Mr. Fain replied that they are familiar with the rules.

Dr. Smidt asked if they would be managing a website that would allow a patient to
request a prescription over the Internet.

Mr. Fain stated that the website would ask the patient to identify their veterinarian and
what medication they need for their pet. The pharmacist would then contact the
veterinarian for the prescription.

Mr. Dutcher asked if the prescriptions would be filled for patients outside of the valley.

Mr. Fain stated that they have no associations with out of state veterinarians.

On motion by Mr. Dutcher and Dr. Sypherd, the Board unanimously approved the
application for MyVetSentMe . The Board also approved their request for an exception
for equipment normally required for a limited service dispensing pharmacy.

Non-Resident Permits

At the conclusion of questions from the Board Members and on motion by Dr. Berry
and Dr. Smidt, the Board unanimously approved the non-resident permits listed below.

NON-RESIDENT (Out of State)
Pharmacy Location Owner
CDS Pharmacies 9371 Cypress Lake Dr., Suite #8, Fort Myers, FL CDS Pharmacies Corp.

33919

Amber Pharmacy

10004 S. 152™ St., Omaha, NE 68138

Amber Enterprises

VetSource Home Delivery

17014 N.E. Sandy Blvd., Portland, OR 97320

Strategic Pharmaceutical Solutions

Express Scripts

4415 Lewis Rd., Harrisburg, PA 17111 (O)

ESI Mail Pharmacy Service, Inc.

Enclara Health

1480 Imperial Way, West Deptford, NJ 08066

Enclara Health, LLC

Independence Home Pharmacy Il

1308 S. 12" St., Murray, KY 42071

Soporex Respiratory Il

Pharmacia ElI Amanacer

1842 S. Blue Island Ave., Chicago, IL 60608

Pharmacia EI Amanecer, Inc.

Direct Meds Pharmacy

1345 Grand St., Leonia, NJ 07605

Direct Meds Inc.

Custom Compounding Pharmacy
of America

3 Maple St., Kent, CT 06757

Custom Compounding Pharmacy of
America, Inc.

Ridgeway Pharmacy, Ltd.

2824 US Hwy 93 N, Victor, Ml 59875

Ridgeway Pharmacy, Ltd.

Walgreens Specialty Pharmacy,
LLC

9775 SW Gemini Dr., Suite 1, Beaverton, OR 97008

Walgreens Specialty Pharmacy, LLC

Pharmaceutical Specialities, Inc.

4330 S. Manhattan Ave., Tampa, FL 33611

Pharmaceutical Specialities, Inc.

Green Valley Drugs

6434 S. Arville St., Las Vegas, NV 89118

Scot Silber

US Bioservices

2525 Perimeter Place Dr., #100, Nashville, TN 37214

IHS Acquisition XXX, Inc.

Corinthian Care Group

11550 IH 10 West #100, San Antonio, TX 78230

Judi McNeel, Charles McQueary

(O) = Ownership Change

Pharmacists, Interns, Pharmacy Technicians, and Pharmacy Technician Trainees

President Van Hassel stated that all license requests and applications were in order.




On motion by Mr. Dutcher and Dr. Smidt, the Board unanimously approved the
Pharmacists licenses listed on the attachments.

On motion by Dr. Berry and Dr. Smidt, the Board unanimously approved the Intern
licenses listed on the attachments.

On motion by Dr. Berry and Dr. Sypherd, the Board unanimously approved the
Pharmacy Technician and Pharmacy Technician Trainee applications listed on the
attachments.

AGENDA ITEM 8 — License Applications Requiring Board Review
#1 Derek Cummings
Derek Cummings appeared on his own behalf to request to proceed with reciprocity.

President Van Hassel opened the discussion by asking Mr. Cummings to describe the
nature of his request.

Mr. Cummings stated that he is requesting to reciprocate his pharmacist license to
Arizona.

Mr. Van Hassel asked Mr. Cummings if his license was disciplined in another state. Mr.
Cummings stated that his license was disciplined by the Illinois Board. Mr. Cummings
stated that in 2002 he was self medicating and diverted medications. Mr. Cummings
stated that he was arrested and convicted of a misdemeanor. Mr. Cummings stated that
he was required to submit to random drug testing and was required to obtain counseling.
Mr. Cummings stated that he completed all the requirements in July of 2005.

Mr. Van Hassel asked Mr. Cummings if his license is currently in good standing. Mr.
Cummings replied yes.

Mr. Dutcher asked Mr. Cummings if he has a job in Arizona. Mr. Cummings stated that
he currently works for a staffing agency and he will work for them when he moves to
Arizona.

Mr. Van Hassel asked if Illinois has a pharmacist assistance program. Mr. Cummings
stated that he was required to seek his own counseling and therapy independently.

On motion by Mr. McAllister and Mr. Dutcher, the Board unanimously approved the
request by Mr. Cummings to proceed with reciprocity.

AGENDA ITEM 9 — Reports
Executive Director Report
Mr. Wand opened his discussion by reviewing the online renewal process. Mr. Wand

stated that during the online renewal process the vendor was switched from IBM to NIC,
who was awarded the new state contract.



Mr. Wand stated that initially the renewal process worked, but after the switch to the new
vendor several problems were encountered.

Mr. Wand stated that individuals that renewed online were never sent the link to print
their licenses.

Mr. Wand stated that IBM did a data dump and supplied the Board with a list of
individuals that did not receive their licenses. Mr. Wand stated that the Compliance Staff
helped print licenses and stuff envelopes to mail to the individuals that renewed online.
Mr. Wand estimated that roughly 10,000 renewals were printed and mailed. Mr. Wand
stated that Heather Lathim, the Drug Inspector, helped answer phones in the office during
the renewal period.

Mr. Wand stated that there was also a hardware issue that prevented the staff from
logging onto the secure site for processing license renewals. It was determined that the
switch in the basement of the building was bad and was replaced.

Dr. Smidt asked if the Board would be able to recoup any of losses. Mr. Wand replied
that he is working with GITA (Government Information Technology Agency ) in hopes
of recouping some of the losses. Mr. Wand stated that he had to spend about $8,000 that
was not anticipated to mail the licenses that the individuals should have been able to
print.

Mr. Wand stated that the phone lines were very busy during the renewal period. The new
phone system will only allow 25 messages per line.

Mr. Wand reviewed the Budget with the Board Members. Mr. Wand stated that currently
the Board is 2% to the black.

Mr. Wand explained that expenses were higher in August due to the check that was
presented to the University of Arizona. Mr. Wand explained that expenses were higher
in October due to the unexpected costs to mail the renewals.

Mr. Wand stated that the State is experiencing a Budget short fall. Mr. Wand stated that
he received a letter from the JLBC (Joint Legislative Budget Committee) indicating that
they plan to transfer fund balances to the General Fund. Mr. Wand stated that they plan
to sweep 25% of the balance to the general fund.

Mr. Wand stated that he is required to the respond to the JLBC concerning the transfer of
the funds and the impact the transfer would have on the Board. Mr. Wand stated
currently the Board does not have access to the funds. Mr. Wand stated that if any Board
Members have any objections he could file an objection to having the funds transferred to
the General Fund.

Mr. Wand stated that the only issue he could forsee is if the Board needed to pay any
legal fees as a result of a case. Mr. Wand stated that the transfer could impact the Board
if the Board needed to make any supplemental requests.

Dr. Sypherd recommended that Mr. Wand include in his reply any financial concerns that
the Board would not be able to meet if the money is transferred from the agency fund.



Deputy Director Report

Ms. Frush stated during the months of September and October 2007, the Compliance
Staff issued letters for the following violations:

Controlled Substance Violations

1. Controlled Substance Overage — (5)

2. Controlled Substance Shortage — (6)

3. Failure to Conduct Controlled Substance Inventory upon change of Pharmacist in
Charge — (1)

4. Failure to Count CIHI-CV on Annual Controlled Inventory — (1)

Documentation Violations

1. Failure to Document Medical Conditions — (9)

2. Failure to sign daily sig log — (1)

3. Failure to document counseling — (4)

4. Failure to have signed technician statements concerning job description, policies, and
procedures, and Board rules — (1)

5. Failure to have a Pharmacy Technician Training Program for Compounding — (1)

Pharmacy Violations

1. Allowing technicians to work with an expired license — (1)
2. Wall Certificate not posted — (1)

3. Outdated prescription medications in the pharmacy — (3)
4. No Designated Pharmacist in Charge — (1)

The following areas were noted on the inspection reports for improvement:
1. Documentation of Medical Conditions

Areas outside the inspection reports that may be of interest:
1. Cll prescriptions are valid for 90 days after date of issue.
2. Be sure all pharmacy personnel have current licenses.

Arizona Pharmacy Alliance Report

Mark Boesen, was present to update the Board concerning the activities of the Arizona
Pharmacy Alliance.

Mr. Boesen updated the Board on CE programs that were offered throughout the state.
Mr. Boesen stated that a CE program was offered entitled Spanish for Pharmacist. Mr.
Boesen stated law CE programs were offered at nine outlying areas.

Mr. Boesen stated that an immunization certification program was offered. Mr. Boesen
stated that approximately 50 participants were certified to administer immunizations.

Mr. Boesen stated that the Pharmacy Network plans to offer a Diabetes Self Care
Program. The project will be patterned after the Ashfield project. The program would be
conducted as an 18 month pilot program before the program would be offered statewide.



Mr. Boesen stated that the Alliance is dealing with several regulatory issues, such as
AMP reimbursements and the requirements for tamper resistant prescription pads for
Medicaid prescriptions. Mr. Boesen stated that in Arizona the tamper resistant
prescription pads are only required for Fee for Service Medicaid patients.

Mr. Boesen stated that the FDA is currently holding public hearings that would establish
a class of medications that would be kept behind the counter and could only be sold to the
patient after the pharmacist speaks with the patient.

AGENDA ITEM 11 - Consideration of Consumer Complaint Committee
Recommendations

The Consumer Complaint Review Committee met prior to the Board Meeting to review
13 complaints. Dr. Berry, Ms. Honeyestewa, and Dr. Sypherd served as the review
committee. Board Members were encouraged to discuss issues and were encouraged to
ask questions.

Due to a conflict of interest, Mr. Haiber recused himself from participating in the review,
discussion, and proposed action concerning Agenda Item 11, Schedule F, Complaint
#3395, Complaint #3398, Complaint #3406, and Complaint #3417.

Due to a conflict of interest, Dr. Berry recused herself from participating in the review,
discussion, and proposed action concerning Agenda Item 11, Schedule F, Complaint
#3405, and Complaint #3436.

The Board Members discussed Complaint #3443. The Board Members discussed the
proposed fines to be charged for each violation

The following summary represents the final decisions of the Board in each complaint:

Complaint #3391 - Authorize Executive Director to order an evaluation for the
Pharmacist with an addictionologist.

On motion by Mr. Dutcher and Dr. Sypherd, the Board unanimously agreed to accept

the recommendation of the complaint review committee for Complaint #3391.

Complaint #3392 - Dismiss
On motion by Mr. Dutcher and Mr. Haiber, the Board unanimously agreed to accept
the recommendation of the complaint review committee for Complaint #3392.

Complaint #3395 - Dismiss
On motion by Mr. Dutcher and Dr. Sypherd, the Board unanimously agreed to accept
the recommendation of the complaint review committee for Complaint #3395.

Complaint #3398 - Dismiss
On motion by Mr. Dutcher and Dr. Berry, the Board unanimously agreed to accept the
recommendation of the complaint review committee for Complaint #3398.

Complaint #3405 - Dismiss
On motion by Mr. Dutcher and Dr. Sypherd, the Board unanimously agreed to accept
the recommendation of the complaint review committee for Complaint #3405.



Complaint #3406 - Dismiss
On motion by Mr. Dutcher and Dr. Berry, the Board unanimously agreed to accept the
recommendation of the complaint review committee for Complaint #3406.

Complaint #3417 - Dismiss
On motion by Mr. Dutcher and Dr. Berry, the Board unanimously agreed to accept the
recommendation of the complaint review committee for Complaint #3417.

Complaint #3420 - Conference — Permit Holder with Pharmacist In Charge as witness
On motion by Mr. Dutcher and Dr. Berry, the Board unanimously agreed to accept the
recommendation of the complaint review committee for Complaint #3420.

Complaint #3427 - Consent for PAPA contract with credit for time not employed
On motion by Mr. Dutcher and Dr. Berry, the Board unanimously agreed to accept the
recommendation of the complaint review committee for Complaint #3427.

Complaint #3436 - Conference — Pharmacist and Two Pharmacy Technicians
On motion by Mr. Dutcher and Mr. Haiber, the Board unanimously agreed to accept
the recommendation of the complaint review committee for Complaint #3436.

Complaint #3441 - Consent for Voluntary Surrender
On motion by Mr. Dutcher and Dr. Berry, the Board unanimously agreed to accept the
recommendation of the complaint review committee for Complaint #3441.

Complaint #3442 - Consent for PAPA contract with credit for time not employed
Open a new complaint against the permittee for Controlled
Substance Accountability

On motion by Mr. Dutcher and Dr. Berry, the Board unanimously agreed to accept the

recommendation of the complaint review committee for Complaint #3442.

Complaint #3443 - Consent agreement for fine - $1,000 dollars for each violation
listed (8) and an additional $1,000 fine for each drug in the
comfort kit that was dispensed without a valid prescription (49 kits
with 6 prescription drugs in each kit).

On motion by Mr. Dutcher and Mr. Haiber, the Board unanimously agreed to accept

the recommendation of the complaint review committee for Complaint #3443.

AGENDA ITEM 12 — Consent Agreements

President Van Hassel asked Board Members if there were any questions or discussions
concerning the consent agreements. Executive Director Hal Wand indicated that the
consent agreements have been reviewed and approved by the Attorney General’s Office
and have been signed.

#1 James Green - Case 08-0012-PHR
On motion by Dr. Berry and Mr. Dutcher, the Board unanimously agreed to accept the

consent agreement as presented in the meeting book and signed by the respondent. A roll
call vote was taken. (Mr. McAllister — aye, Dr. Smidt — aye, Ms. Honeyestewa — aye,



Mr. Dutcher —aye, Mr. Haiber —aye, Dr. Sypherd — aye, Dr. Berry — aye, and Mr. Van
Hassel —aye.)

#2 Loren Dorstad - Case 08-0013-PHR

On motion by Dr. Berry and Mr. Haiber, the Board unanimously agreed to accept the
consent agreement as presented in the meeting book and signed by the respondent. A roll
call vote was taken. (Mr. McAllister — aye, Dr. Smidt — aye, Ms. Honeyestewa — aye,

Mr. Dutcher —aye, Mr. Haiber —aye, Dr. Sypherd — aye, Dr. Berry — aye, and Mr. Van
Hassel —aye.)

#3 Angel Lin - Case 08-0014-PHR

On motion by Dr. Berry and Mr. Dutcher, the Board unanimously agreed to accept the
consent agreement as presented in the meeting book and signed by the respondent. A roll
call vote was taken. (Mr. McAllister — aye, Dr. Smidt — aye, Ms. Honeyestewa — aye,

Mr. Dutcher —aye, Mr. Haiber —aye, Dr. Sypherd — aye, Dr. Berry — aye, and Mr. Van
Hassel —aye.)

AGENDA ITEM 13 — Pharmacy Technician Trainee Requests for Approval to
Reapply for Licensure

President VVan Hassel addressed this issue. Mr. Van Hassel stated that Mr. Wand has
reviewed the requests. Mr. Van Hassel stated that the pharmacy technician trainees have
received a letter stating that they may only reapply for licensure as a pharmacy technician
trainee one time. Mr. Van Hassel stated that during the next two years the pharmacy
technician trainee must take the PTCB test and become certified if they would like to
continue to work as a pharmacy technician.

On motion by Mr. Dutcher and Dr. Berry, the Board unanimously approved the
requests of the Pharmacy Technician Trainees listed below to proceed with the
reapplication process. The pharmacy technician trainee may reapply for an additional
two years as a pharmacy technician trainee one time.

Pharmacy Technician Trainees Approved to reapply for licensure as a Pharmacy
Technician Trainee for an additional two years.

1. Mirjana Elez 15. Thomas Brannan

2. Carolyn Bobeck 16. David Brown

3. Rodney Grove 17. Mark Kassees

4, Catina Bell 18. Kyle Walker

5. Mary Kathleen Beach 19. Gaetana Michelon
6. Angela Moreno 20. Jesse Padilla

7. Blaine Francis Scoles 21. Joni Bowman

8. Natalie Yeretina Vlahakis 22, Kristen Sunderland
9. Lawrence Solomon Garcia 23. Justin Lindsay

10. Paula Ann Patty-Bryant 24, Kevin Gill

11. Judith Irene Otenburg 25. O’Malley Oliveras
12. Lorenia Lopez 26. Cassandra Celaya
13. Teresa Ann Domenici 27. Thomas Thottumkal

14. Shirley Kaye Alexander 28. Lisa Ziemianski



AGENDA ITEM 14 — Proposed Rules and Substantive Policy Statement
Substitution of Prescription Drugs Rule

Rules Writer Dean Wright opened the discussion by stating that the Board deleted R4-23-
406 that listed the drugs that could not be substituted or interchanged in a final
rulemaking published effective March 7, 2002,

Mr. Wright stated that he feels that it would be prudent to bring back the list of drugs that
cannot be substituted or interchanged. Mr. Wright stated that the rule would list drugs
that are not to be substituted or interchanged.

Mr. Wand stated that the reason the rule was initially deleted was because the statutes
indicated that in order for substitution to occur the drugs must be therapeutically
equivalent and listed as such in the orange book.

Mr. Wright stated that the orange book does list medications that can be substituted and
does not allow the substitution of different dosage forms.

Mr. McAllister stated that he feels it is not necessary to republish the rule.
The Board Members advised Mr. Wright not to proceed with the rulemaking process.
Controlled Substances Prescription Monitoring Program

Controlled Substances Program Director/Rules Writer Dean Wright opened the
discussion by stating that he has prepared a draft of the proposed rules for the Controlled
Substances Prescription Monitoring Program. Mr. Wright stated that the Task Force will
meet tomorrow.

Mr. Wright stated that the rules establish the registration process and how registrants can
obtain information. Mr. Wright stated that the task force helps define the thresholds of
the program.

Mr. Wand stated that comments from the task force could be discussed as an agenda item
at the January Board Meeting.

Mr. Haiber asked if pharmacies would register. Mr. Wright stated that pharmacies would
be included in the database. Mr. Wand stated that if the Board approves a new pharmacy
then the pharmacy would be added to the database.

Dr. Smidt asked if anyone who registers could access prescription information. Mr.
Wright stated that they must have an open complaint, open investigation, or treating the
patient.

Mr. Wright stated that civil immunity is given to individuals that have the right to access
the data.

The Board Members gave approval for Mr. Wright to continue with the rulemaking
process.



Unethical Practices Rule

Rules Writer Dean Wright opened the discussion by stating that the Board reviewed the
first draft of this rule at the March 2007 Board Meeting. The Board requested that the
staff research other state Board rules dealing with internet-based questionnaires. Mr.
Wright that he has prepared a revised draft for the rule using a mixture of language from
other states.

The Board Members gave Mr. Wright approval to proceed with the rulemaking process.
Substantive Policy Statement
Substituting Albuterol HFA Inhalers for Albuterol CFC Inhalers

Rules Writer Dean Wright opened the discussion by stating that the FDA has published
final rules to amend its regulation on the use of ozone-depleting substances in medical
products. The rule states that as of December 31, 2008, production and sale of single
ingredient albuterol chlorofluorocarbon (CFC) metered-dose inhalers (MDI) must cease.

Mr. Wright stated that this substantive policy statement will serve as a guide to
pharmacists regarding substitution when refilling prescriptions written for MDIs. Mr.
Wright stated that the policy would serve as a guideline until the Federal Law takes
effect.

Mr. Wand reminded the Board that policies are guidelines and are not enforceable.

The Board Members approved the Substantive Policy for Substitution of Albuterol HFA
Inhalers for Albuterol CFC Inhalers.

AGENDA ITEM 24 — Board Meeting Dates for 2008

President VVan Hassel opened the discussion by asking the Board Members if there were
any issues with the dates selected for next year’s Board Meetings.

The Board Members asked that the Meeting scheduled for March 12" and 13" be moved
to March 19" and March 20"

The following dates are the proposed Board Meeting dates for 2008:

January 23 and 24, 2008
March 19 and 20, 2008
May 7 and 8, 2008

July 9 and 10, 2008
September 17 and 18, 2008
November 12 and 13, 2008

AGENDA ITEM 25 — Department of Health and Human Services Letter to Boards
of Pharmacy for Patient Information Evaluation



President VVan Hassel asked Mr. Wand to address this agenda item.

Mr. Wand stated that he received a letter from the Department of Health and Human
Services indicating that they would be evaluating written materials given to patients. Mr.
Wand stated that the Department is asking the State Boards to cooperate with their
studies.

On motion by Dr. Berry and Mr. Dutcher, the Board unanimously agreed to
participate in the studies conducted by the Department of Health and Human Services to
evaluate patient information.

AGENDA ITEM 26 — Call to the Public
President Van Hassel announced that interested parties have the opportunity at this time

to address issues of concern to the Board; however the Board may not discuss or resolve
any issues because the issues were not posted on the meeting agenda.

No one came forth with any issues or concerns.

The meeting recessed at 3:15 P.M. The meeting will reconvene at 9:00 A.M. on
November 15, 2007.

AGENDA ITEM 1 — Call to Order — November 15, 2007

President VVan Hassel convened the meeting at 9:08 A.M. and welcomed the audience to
the meeting.

The following Board Members were present: President Tom Van Hassel, Chuck Dutcher,
Steven Haiber, Louanne Honeyestewa, Dennis McAllister, Paul Sypherd, and Ridge
Smidt. The following staff members were present: Compliance Officers Rich Cieslinski,
Chuck Cordell, Larry Dick, Ed Hunter, Sandra Sutcliffe, and Dean Wright, Drug
Inspector Heather Lathim, Deputy Director Cheryl Frush, Executive Director Hal Wand,
and Assistant Attorney General Elizabeth Campbell.

Ms. Frush explained that law continuing education would be offered for attendance at the
meeting.

AGENDA ITEM 7 — Special Requests
#1 Devang Pandit

Devang Pandit appeared on his own behalf to request that the Board allow him to take
the MPJE exam for the fourth time.

President VVan Hassel opened the discussion by asking Mr. Pandit to describe the nature
of his request.

Mr. Pandit stated that he is requesting to take the MPJE exam an additional time. Mr.
Pandit stated that he has taken the exam three times and has not passed the exam.



Mr. Wand asked Mr. Pandit if he has worked in a pharmacy in Arizona. Mr. Pandit
stated that he is reciprocating to Arizona and has worked in Michigan for one year as a
pharmacist.

Mr. Van Hassel asked Mr. Pandit if he has a job in Arizona. Mr. Pandit replied that he
has been in contact with an employer in Arizona and he will move to Arizona if he passes
the exam.

Mr. McAllister asked Mr. Pandit what he has done to improve his knowledge of Arizona
law. Mr. Pandit stated that he has reviewed the Arizona law books and has reviewed the
Federal laws.

Mr. Haiber asked Mr. Pandit if he finishes the exam. Mr. Pandit stated that he is able to
finish the exam.

Mr. Haiber asked Mr. Pandit about taking the exams close together. Mr. Pandit stated
that he must wait 30 days to take the exam and at the end of the 30 days he takes the
exam.

Mr. Wand recommended that Mr. Pandit purchase the Strauss review book which would
help him review Federal Law. Mr. Wand suggested that Mr. Pandit may want to apply
for a Graduate Intern license in Arizona and work in an Arizona Pharmacy which would
help him learn the Arizona laws.

On motion by Mr. McAllister and Dr. Smidt, the Board unanimously approved Mr.
Pandit’s request to take the MPJE exam one additional time and if Mr. Pandit does not
pass the exam he must take a pharmacy law review course before petitioning the Board to
take the exam an additional time.

#2 Judith Rosch

Judith Rosch appeared on her own behalf to request that the Board terminate the
suspension of her pharmacist license and impose probation per Board Order 07-0048-
PHR. Lisa Yates was present to answer questions concerning Ms. Rosch’s participation
in the PAPA program.

President VVan Hassel opened the discussion by asking Ms. Rosch to describe the nature
of her request. Ms. Rosch stated that she would like to have the suspension removed
from her license and have probation imposed.

Mr. Van Hassel asked Ms. Yates if Ms. Rosch has been compliant with her PAPA
contract. Ms. Yates stated that Ms. Rosch has complied with her contract and is ready to
return to work.

Mr. Dutcher asked Ms. Rosch how long she has been in the PAPA program. Ms. Rosch
stated that she signed a confidential contract about 4.5 years ago and violated that
contract and has signed a new 5 year contract.



Mr. Wand explained that if a confidential PAPA participant violates their confidential
PAPA contract then they are reported to the Board and they must sign a consent
agreement that orders them to sign a new PAPA contract as a known PAPA participant.

Mr. Van Hassel asked Ms. Rosch to describe why she signed a PAPA contract initially.
Ms. Rosch stated that she signed a confidential PAPA contract based on her use of
alcohol. Ms. Rosch stated that she violated that contract by taking Provigil without a
prescription. Ms. Rosch stated that over the last 6 months she has recognized character
defects that have caused her issues. Ms. Rosch stated that she is seeing a second
counselor to help her with these issues. Ms. Rosch stated that the counselor is helping
her develop a new approach to resolving these issues. Ms. Rosch stated that she has been
a pharmacist for 30 years and would like to return to work.

Dr. Sypherd asked Ms. Rosch about her substance abuse. Ms. Rosch stated that she
abused alcohol. Ms. Rosch stated that she started drinking alcohol to treat her insomnia.
Ms. Rosch stated that she was suffering from pre-menopausal symptoms and depression.

Ms. Rosch stated that she has learned how to deal with her menopausal symptoms and is
on hormone replacement.

Dr. Sypherd asked Ms. Rosch what would prevent her from relapsing again. Ms. Rosch
stated that she has an action plan to follow and is seeking help from additional
counselors. Ms. Rosch stated that she participates more in peer group discussions and
she will not relapse again.

Dr. Smidt asked Ms. Rosch about the use of Provigil without a prescription. Ms. Rosch
stated that she took Provigil without a prescription. Ms. Rosch stated that she then
received a prescription from her doctor, but was told that she could not take Provigil
because it was a controlled substance that was not allowed under her PAPA contract.
Ms. Rosch stated that she stopped taking the Provigil.

Dr. Smidt asked Ms. Rosch what character defects she is addressing with her counselors.
Ms. Rosch stated that she has always felt that she must be self-sufficient and self-reliant
and her counselors have told her that is okay to consult with others before making
decisions.

On motion by Mr. McAllister and Dr. Smidt, the Board unanimously agreed to
approve the request by Ms. Rosch to terminate the suspension imposed on her license and
impose probation per Board Order 07-0048-PHR.

#3 Stan Kudish

Stan Kudish appeared on his own behalf to request that the Board terminate the
suspension of his pharmacist license and impose probation per Board Order 07-0039-
PHR. Lisa Yates was present to answer questions concerning Mr. Kudish’s participation
in the PAPA program.

President VVan Hassel opened the discussion by asking Mr. Kudish to describe the nature
of his request. Mr. Kudish stated that he would like to have his license changed from
suspension to probation. Mr. Kudish stated that he has not worked since January of 2007.



Dr. Smidt asked if Mr. Kudish met with the steering committee. Ms. Yates stated that
Mr. Kudish met with the steering committee. Ms. Yates stated that Mr. Kudish is seeing
an addictionologist to assist him with his pain management. Ms. Yates stated that Mr.
Kudish’s counselor recommends that the suspension be removed.

Dr. Sypherd asked Mr. Kudish what he has done to conquer his addiction. Mr. Kudish
stated that he attends AA or NA meetings on a daily basis. Mr. Kudish stated that life is
better now. Mr. Kudish stated that he is ready to return to work.

Mr. Van Hassel asked Mr. Kudish if he has lined up a job. Mr. Kudish stated that he
thought it would be prudent to get his license back before pursuing a job.

On motion by Mr. Haiber and Mr. Dutcher, the Board unanimously agreed to approve
the request by Mr. Kudish to terminate the suspension imposed on his license and impose
probation per Board Order 07-0039-PHR.

#4 Robert Carranza

Robert Carranza appeared on his own behalf to request that the Board terminate the
suspension of his pharmacist license and impose probation per Board Order 08-0007-
PHR. Lisa Yates was present to answer questions concerning Mr. Carranza’s
participation in the PAPA program.

President VVan Hassel opened the discussion by asking Mr. Carranza to describe the
nature of his request. Mr. Carranza stated that he would like to have his license changed
from suspension to probation.

Mr. Carranza stated that he signed his consent agreement in August, but had completed
his inpatient treatment at a treatment center in Las Vegas in April.

Ms. Campbell explained that Mr. Carranza was given credit for the time that he had not
worked and that is why the suspension period is different on his consent agreement.

Mr. Van Hassel asked if Mr. Carranza had met with the PAPA Steering Committee. Ms.
Yates stated that Mr. Carranza has met with the PAPA Steering Committee and has met
all contractual agreements.

Mr. Wand stated that Mr. Carranza has been very responsive and cooperative.

Mr. Van Hassel asked Mr. Carranza if he is ready to return to work. Mr. Carranza stated
that he is ready to return to work. Mr. Carranza stated that he realizes that recovery is life
long. Mr. Carranza stated that the PAPA program helps the participants maintain their
recovery.

On motion by Mr. McAllister and Mr. Haiber, the Board unanimously agreed to
approve the request by Mr. Carranza to terminate the suspension imposed on his license
and impose probation per Board Order 08-0007-PHR.



#5 Andrew Marek

Andrew Marek appeared on his own behalf to request that the Board terminate the
probation of his pharmacist license per Board Order 07-0055-PHR.

President Van Hassel opened the discussion by asking Mr. Marek to describe the nature
of his request. Mr. Marek stated that he is requesting the removal of probation from his
Pharmacist license. Mr. Marek stated that he mis-filled a prescription and was placed on
probation.

Mr. Van Hassel asked Mr. Marek what has changed in his practice. Mr. Marek stated
that he is no longer working at the high volume store where he made the error and is now
a floater. Mr. Marek stated that he now scans every prescription.

Mr. Dutcher asked Mr. Marek if he paid his fine. Mr. Marek stated that he was told that
he could pay his fine after meeting with the Board.

Mr. Dutcher asked Mr. Marek if he would go back to the high volume store. Mr. Marek
stated that he would have no problems in going back to the high volume store.

Dr. Sypherd asked Mr. Marek what he does when he has a sound alike drug. Mr. Marek
replied that he scans all prescriptions.

Mr. Dutcher reminded Mr. Marek that the pharmacist sets the pace at which he works and
he should work at a pace that is comfortable.

Mr. Van Hassel reminded Mr. Marek that the company has given the pharmacists tools to
help prevent errors from occurring and reminded Mr. Marek that he should use the tools
that are available to help prevent errors.

On motion by Mr. McAllister and Mr. Haiber, the Board unanimously agreed to
approve the request by Mr. Marek to terminate the probation on his license contingent on
meeting all requirements of the Board Order 07-0055-PHR.

#6 Denise Jordan

Denise Jordan appeared on her own behalf to request that the Board terminate the
probation of her Pharmacy Technician license imposed by Board Order 07-0001-PHR.

President Van Hassel opened the discussion by asking Ms. Jordan to describe the nature
of her request. Ms. Jordan stated that she is requesting that her probation be terminated.

Mr. Van Hassel asked Ms. Jordan to explain why she was placed on probation. Ms.
Jordan stated that she tested positive for marijuana on a random drug screen. Ms. Jordan
stated that she was terminated from her job. Ms. Jordan stated that she agreed to
participate in the TASC program as part of her probation. Ms. Jordan stated that she
completed the TASC program and has learned her lesson.

Mr. Van Hassel asked Ms. Jordan what she was required to do as part of the TASC
program. Ms. Jordan stated that she was required to complete 16 weeks of counseling



and was called for random urine screens for one year. Ms. Jordan stated that she was
required to pay for the urine screens.

Mr. Van Hassel noted that Ms. Jordan was the first technician to accept a consent
agreement for participation in the TASC program and had completed the program.

Mr. Dutcher asked Ms. Jordan if she has overcome her problem. Ms. Jordan stated that
she now understands that marijuana is a drug. Ms. Jordan stated that the counseling was
very helpful. Ms. Jordan stated that she never thought of marijuana as a drug and her
counselor reviewed with her that marijuana is a drug.

Mr. Van Hassel asked Ms. Jordan about the urine screens. Ms. Jordan stated that she had
to call daily to see if she needed to be tested that day. Ms. Jordan stated that if you were
called for testing that you had to be tested by five o’clock that day.

Ms. Jordan stated that she likes working as a pharmacy technician and wants to thank the
Board for the opportunity to participate in the program.

Mr. Wand stated that Ms. Jordan sent a letter every month updating him on her progress
in the program. Mr. Wand stated that Ms. Jordan was the first technician to take
advantage of the program.

Mr. Wand asked Ms. Jordan if she felt the PAPA program would be helpful. Ms. Jordan
stated that she is not aware of all the aspects of the PAPA program, but felt more
counseling would be beneficial.

Dr. Sypherd asked Ms. Jordan if she thought she was impaired at work when she tested
positive for Marijuana. Ms. Jordan stated that she argued with her counselor that she was
not impaired. Ms. Jordan stated that her counselor educated her about what marijuana
and its metabolites do your body and how you are under the influence of a drug. Ms.
Jordan stated that she now realizes that marijuana is a drug and she no longer uses
marijuana.

On motion by Mr. Dutcher and Mr. McAllister, the Board unanimously agreed to
approve the request by Ms. Jordan to terminate the probation on her license imposed by
Board Order 07-0001-PHR.

#7 Mark Forster

Dr. Smidt recused himself from participating in the review, discussion, and proposed
action concerning this agenda item

Mark Forster appeared on his own behalf to request that the Board terminate the
suspension of his pharmacist license imposed per Board Order 02-0003-PHR.

President VVan Hassel opened the discussion by asking Mr. Forster to describe the nature
of his request. Mr. Forster stated that is requesting that the Board terminate the
sus